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PROGRESS REPORT ATTACHMENTS (GAS)
PHMSA Form No. PHMSA F 999-92

INSTRUCTIONS:

These attachments request information either for the entire calendar year (CY 2019: January 1 through December 31,
2019) or as of (or on) December 31, 2019. Please report actual as opposed to estimated numbers on the attachments. Be
careful to provide complete and accurate information since the PHMSA State Programs will be validating the attachments
during the state's next annual evaluation.

Attachment 1: State Jurisdiction and Agent Status Over Facilities. Requires the state to indicate those pipeline

® operator types over which the state agency has jurisdiction under existing law. If the state does not have jurisdiction
over an operator type, indicate why not in the column designated No, using the one alpha code (A or B) which best
describes the reason. If the state agency has jurisdiction over an operator type, place an X in the column designated
Yes and provide information on the number of operators, the number and percent of operators inspected, the
number of inspection units, and the number and percent of inspection units inspected. If the jurisdiction over a type
of operator is under a Section 60106 Agreement, indicate X/60106 in the column designated Yes. If an operator has
multiple types of system (i.e. gas distribution and intrastate transmission), each type should be counted in
corresponding category. Total operator count listed in Attachment 3 may not match Attachment 1 totals due to
multiple types of systems per operator. If the same operator/inspection unit is visited more than once during the
year, count only once under number of operators inspected/number of inspection units inspected on Attachment 1.
The multiple visits would, however, be reflected under total inspection person-days in Attachment 2.

® Attachment 2: Total State Field Inspection Activity. Requires the state to indicate by operator type the number
of inspection person-days spent during CY 2019 on inspections; standard comprehensive; design, testing, and
construction; on-site operator training; integrity management; operator qualification; investigating incidents or
accidents; damage prevention activities; and compliance follow-up. Attachment 2 should include drug and alcohol
inspections. Counting "In Office" Inspection Time - An inspector may choose to review pipeline company
procedure manuals or records away from the company facility in order to effectively use on-site inspection time.
The amount of time spent reviewing procedures and records may be counted as part of the inspection process. It is
important that an inspector only record time for activities that normally would be completed as part of an on-site
inspection. For example, an inspector may attribute the three hours he or she spent reviewing a pipeline operator's
procedure manual and records prior to an on-site inspection towards the total inspection time. Each supervisor must
carefully review the reported time to ensure the time attributed is consistent with the activity completed and is
carefully delineated from normal office duties.

e Attachment 3: Facility Subject to State Safety Jurisdiction. States should only list the facilities that are
jurisdictional under Parts 192 and 193 (Gas) and Part 195 (Hazardous Liquid) of which the state has safety
authority over. This attachment requires the business name and address of each person subject to the pipeline
safety jurisdiction of the state agency as of December 31, 2019. Also indicate the operator type (e.g., intrastate
transmission) consistent with the listing in Attachment 1 and include the number of inspection units in each
operator's system. The operator identification number (OPID) assigned by PHMSA must also be included on this
attachment. If an operator has multiple types of system (i.e. gas distribution and intrastate transmission), each type
should be counted in corresponding category. Total operator count listed in Attachment 3 may not match
Attachment 1 totals due to multiple types of systems per operator.

Attachment 4: Pipeline Incidents. Requires a list of incidents investigated by or reported to the state agency that
involved personal injury requiring hospitalization, a fatality, property damage exceeding $50,000, and others
deemed significant by the operator. Clearly identify the operator’s reported cause AND the state's determination
of the cause of the incident using the one most appropriate alpha code footnoted in the attachment. We summarize
this information for Congress by classifying the cause into one of eight top-level categories: (A) corrosion failure;
(B) natural force damage; (C) excavation damage; (D) other outside force damage; (E) material failure of pipe or
weld; (F) equipment failure; (G) incorrect operation; (H) other accident cause. Within each top-level cause you will
find multiple sub-causes, select the appropriate cause code. You can also choose (IP) Investigation Pending for
those incidents remaining under investigation as of December 31. Then provide a summary of incident
investigations.
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¢ Attachment 5: State Compliance Actions. This requires a summary of state pipeline inspection and compliance

actions. [In the Number of Compliance Actions Taken column, keep in mind one compliance action can cover
multiple probable violations.]

Attachment 6: State Record Maintenance and Reporting. Requires a list of records and reports maintained and
required by the state agency.

Attachment 7: State Employees Directly Involved in the Pipeline Safety Program. This attachment requires a
list by name and title of each employee directly involved in the pipeline safety program. Be sure to include the
percentage of time each employee has been involved in the pipeline safety program during 2019. If an employee
has not been in the pipeline safety program the full year of 2019, please note the number of months working on the
program. Indicate a Qualification Category for each of the state's inspectors (see Attachment 7a). The categories are
shown in descending order of education and experience. Please enter the number of the highest description
applicable to each inspector. Finally, provide in summary form the number of all staff (supervisors, inspectors/
investigator, damage prevention/technical and clerical/administrative) working on the pipeline safety program and
the person-years devoted to pipeline safety. Person-years should be reported in hundreds (e.g., 3.25).

Attachment 8: State Compliance with Federal Requirements. This requires the state to indicate whether it is in
compliance with applicable federal requirements. If a particular requirement is not applicable to the state (e.g.
offshore inspections), indicate NA in the column designated Y/N/NA and indicate in the notes section why the
regulation is not applicable. If a regulation has been adopted, indicate the date adopted (e.g., 05/01/04) in the
appropriate column. If the regulation is applicable but has not been adopted indicate N in the Y/N/NA column and
explain why not in the appropriate column (e.g., requires legislative action). If the state has not adopted the
maximum penalty amounts for a related series of violations please indicate civil penalty levels in effect in the state
as of December 31. For State Adoption of Part 198 State One Call Damage Prevention Program if a state has any
penalty amount for its damage prevention law please mark item 7.h as “Adopted but Different Dollar Amounts”
and list the penalty amount in the Note section. Note at the end of Attachment 8 we are requesting each state to
indicate the frequency its legislature meets in general session. This information will be taken into account when
determining if applicable federal regulations have been adopted within 24 months of the effective date or two
general sessions of the state legislature.

Attachment 10: Performance and Damage Prevention Questions. This attachment requires a narrative of each
states goals and accomplishments. In addition it requires a narrative on each states progress toward meeting the
nine elements of an effective damage prevention program as described in the PIPES Act of 2006.
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DEFINITIONS

¢ Inspection Unit. An inspection unit is all or part of an operator's pipeline facilities that are under the control of an

administrative unit that provides sufficient communication and controls to ensure uniform design, construction,
operation, and maintenance procedures for the facilities. (See Glossary of Terms in Guidelines for States Participating
in the Pipeline Safety Program for application of the inspection unit concept to transmission and hazardous liquid
pipeline systems, distribution systems, liquefied gas systems, municipality, master meter system, regulated gathering
pipeline systems, and propane-air systems/petroleum gas systems.)

Inspection Person-Day. An inspection person-day is all or part of a day spent by a state agency representative
including travel in an on-site examination or evaluation of an operator or his system to determine if the operator is in
compliance with federal or state pipeline safety regulations, in an on-site investigation of a pipeline incident, or in job-
site training of an operator. Time expended on such activities should be reported as one inspection person-day for each
day devoted to safety issues, regardless of the number of operators visited during that day.

Probable Violation. A probable violation is a non-compliance with any section or, where a section is divided into
subsections (a), (b), (¢), etc., any subsection of federal or state pipeline regulations. Each numbered section should be
counted separately. Multiple non-compliances of a numbered section discovered on the same inspection should be
counted as one probable violation with multiple pieces of evidence.

Compliance Action. A compliance action is an action or series of sequential actions taken to enforce federal or state
pipeline regulations. One compliance action can cover multiple probable violations. A compliance action may take the
form of a letter warning of future penalties for continued violation, an administratively imposed monetary sanction or
order directing compliance with the regulations, an order directing corrective action under hazardous conditions, a
show-cause order, a criminal sanction, a court injunction, or a similar formal action.
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Attachment 1 - Stats on Operators

STATE JURISDICTION AND AGENT STATUS OVER GAS FACILITIES AS

OF DECEMBER 31, 2019

C No. of
Operator Type State Agency Jurisdiction/ | No. of Operators Inspection | Units Inspected
Agent Status Operators Inspected .
Units
No' Yes # % # %

Distribution
Private X/60105 2 2 {100.0% 3 3 100.0%
Municipal X/60105 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
Master Meter X/60105 1 1 100.0% 1 1 100.0%
LPG X/60105 5 5 100.0% 18 18 100.0%
Other X/60105 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
Transmission

Intrastate X/60105 7 7 1100.0% 8 8 100.0%
Interstate F 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
LNG

Intrastate X/60105 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
Interstate F 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
Other

Gathering Lines A 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
Offshore Facilities A 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A
Total 15 15 [100.0% 30 30 (100.0%

'Codes: A - None in state and does not have jurisdiction;
B - State does not have jurisdictional authority (Provide current status or action being taken to obtain authority
in notes section below)

F - No, State is currently not an interstate agent.

DUNS: 878878743
2019 Gas Base Grant Progress Report

Attachment 1 Notes:

States should explain any special circumstances

Distribution "Other" - ie Co-ops, Public Utility Districts, etc.

X/IA - Yes, I have Interstate Agent jurisdiction over this type of operator

X/60105P = Yes, I have Section 60105 (Certification) over some of the operator type (meaning: I have 60105
authority over some, but not all of this operator type and do not have a 60106 agreement with PHMSA to inspect
them). These operators are identified in the notes below.

General Instructions - All above facilities should only include facilities as defined by federal pipeline regulations
and should not include extended jurisdiction by state regulation.

Nevada pipeline safety program (PSP) experienced some changes in 2019 regarding the number of jurisdictional

Nevada

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION NEVADA, Page: 6



inspection units it is reporting. Those changes are as follows:

In 2019, AmeriGas made piping modifications on four (4) jurisdictional LPG systems in Nevada, resulting in those
systems no longer being 49 CFR 192 jurisdictional. These change resulted in the number of AmeriGas LPG inspections
units falling from fifteen (15), as reported in the 2018 Progress Report, to the eleven (11) as outlined in this Progress
Report. The four (4) AmeriGas changes occurred at the Shaw's Silver & Gold system in Virginia City, NV, the Jewelry
House system in Virginia City, NV, the Lockwood 1 system in Sparks NV, and the Lockwood 2 system in Sparks NV.
The system configurations were changed to either a single tank, single customer LPG system, or to a system that involved
less than 10 residential customers being served from a single LPG tank. Since AmeriGas operates all of its LPG systems
in Nevada under its corporate name and corporate OPID (#32013), this reduction in the LPG system inspection units did
not impact the number of LPG operators listed for Nevada.

Private Distribution - Nevada has 2 private LDC operators, those being Southwest Gas Corporation (SWG) and Sierra
Pacific Power Company (d/b/a NV Energy). SWG is broken up into two units, Southern Nevada Divisions (SND) and
Northern Nevada Division (NND), and that is how the three Inspection Unit figure outlined in the table above is derived.

Municipal Distribution - Nevada does not have any Municipal Distribution natural gas or LPG facilities.

Master Meter - In 2012, as part of Docket No. 12-06043, the PUCN approved a plan to have aging master meter systems
located within the LDC's service territories replaced by new modern plastic pipeline systems owned and operated by the
LDC. To-date approximately ten (10) of these such conversions have occurred. There is only one (1) remaining known
master meter natural gas systems in Nevada, that being Docs Cottages. However, in 2018 Nevada's PSP performed a
detailed investigation into the Docs Cottages system and no longer believes it qualifies as a jurisdictional master meter
system. On September 19, 2018, Nevada PSP sent an interpretation letter to PHMSA asking PHMSA if it agreed with
Nevada PSP's conclusion that Docs Cottages did not meet the definition of a master meter system as outlined in 49 CFR
191.3. Because a response to that interpretation letter was not received by the end of 2019, Nevada PSP is still listing
Docs Cottages as a jurisdictional master meter system in this 2019 Progress Report.

LPG - AmeriGas performed conversion work on four (4) LPG systems making those systems (Shaw's Silver and Gold,
Jewelry House, Lockwood 1 and Lockwood 2) no longer jurisdictional which reduced the number of jurisdictional LPG
systems AmeriGas operates in Nevada from 15 to 11. Therefore the current jurisdictional LPG operators (which makes
up the 18 Inspection Units) in Nevada are as follows:

AmeriGas - 11 jurisdictional units; Western States Propane - 1 jurisdictional unit; Wendover Gas - 4 jurisdictional units
(all located in the City of West Wendover, NV and these units are all inspected together at the same time); NV Energy - 1
jurisdictional system (operated as part of its LDC and inspected as part of the LDC); Mt. Charleston Cabins - 1
jurisdictional system

The number of LPG operators and inspection units is likely to change from year to year going forward. As Nevada's PSP
enforces the provision of 49 CFR 192 on these small systems, which typically have annual profit margins of $1000 per
year per system (or less), operators are likely to continue to convert the systems to non-jurisdictional systems as
AmeriGas did in 2019 and 2018, and as Suburban Propane did in 2016.

Transmission Intrastate - No new transmission operators were added or deleted in 2019. One of the existing intrastate
transmission pipelines continued to be in idle status in 2019. The idle pipeline is the 36 mile Empire Mining Pipeline
OPID 39536, (formerly owned by US Gypsum) which taps off of the interstate Tuscarora pipeline. The pipeline is
currently physically disconnected from the Tuscarora pipeline and it is filled with a small amount of pressurized nitrogen.
Depending on economic conditions it is unclear if this pipeline will ever be placed back in-service, but the operator,
Empire Mining, currently wants to keep the pipeline viable just in case.

The 1700 foot RYZE Renewable Reno, LLC pipeline (formerly known as RESC, LLC,/Advanced Refining Concepts)
which also taps off the interstate Tuscarora pipeline had been shutdown since 2015, but it was re-gassed and put back into
service in October 2019.

Intrastate LNG - There are currently no Intrastate LNG facilities in Nevada, but Nevada has adopted 49 CFR 193, so the

DUNS: 878878743 Nevada
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current assumption is that if an Intrastate LNG facility were to be constructed it would be state jurisdictional and would
fall under the prevue of the PUCN.
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Attachment 4 - Incidents/Accidents

SIGNIFICANT® GAS INCIDENTS/ACCIDENTS JANUARY 1, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2019

Date of
Incident

Location - System Injuries FatalitiesProperty Operator State
City/County/etc. Type # # Damage’ Cause  Cause

$ Code' Code'

04/17/2019

Name of Operator:
Operator ID:

Summary’

LAS VEGAS GD 0 0 $82,175.00 C3 C3

SOUTHWEST GAS CORP
18536 Report No: 20190051

On April 17,2019, Southwest Gas Corporation Southern Nevada Division ("SWG-SND") was notified
by Las Vegas Electric Company ("LVE") at 12:35 a.m. of a natural gas excavation damage that had
occurred at 1175 E. Flamingo Road, Las Vegas, Nevada. SWG-SND determined that a 2-inch
polyethylene ("PE") distribution service pipeline had been hit and in order to safely isolate that leaking
pipe, SWG-SND closed several valves resulting in the loss of gas service to 664 customers ("the
Incident"). SWG-SND notified the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada ("PUCN") Regulatory
Operations Pipeline Safety Staff ("Staff") of the excavation damage on the morning of April 17, 2019,
because the cost of the Incident was expected to exceeded $50,000 reporting threshold, thereby
making the damage a Federal Reportable Incident as defined in 49 CFR 191.3 & 191.5. SWG-SND
notified the National Response Center ("NRC") telephonically on April 18, 2019. SWG-SND also
updated the NRC with its second 48-hour report stating the incident as required.

Staff Senior Gas Pipeline Engineer, Neil Pascual performed an on-site investigation of the Incident on
the morning of April 17,2019.

Between April 26, 2019, and August 29, 2019, Staff sent and received a total of 41 data requests/
response to/from SWG-SND regarding the Incident, via Staff Special Investigatory Docket No.
55-1912. Based upon Staff's investigation into this Incident, Staff has not identified any Probable
Violations or Issues of Concern and Staff agrees with the apparent cause of the Incident as reported by
SWG-SND in its 30-day PHMSA Distribution Incident Report.

Staff did enter into a settlement agreement with LVE regarding the excavation damage and LVE's
violation of Nevada Revised Statute ("NRS 455"). The settlement agreement was filed and approved
by the Commission as part of Docket No. 19-06011. The settlement agreement focused on LVE's
failure to maintain SWG-SND's marks and its failure to excavate with hand tools when crossing SWG-
SND's natural gas pipeline. The civil penalty amount assessed to LVE was $2000.

08/26/2019

Name of Operator:
Operator ID:

Summary®

DUNS: 878878743
2019 Gas Base Grant Progress Report

RENO GD 0 0 $86,170.00 D2 D2

NV ENERGY
18308 Report No: 20190107

On Monday August 26, 2019, the Public Utilities Commission of Nevada's ("Commission")
Regulatory Operations Staff ("Staff") was notified by NV Energy of a Recreation Vehicle ("RV")

Nevada
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versus meter collision that eventually led to a gas ignition at 2879 Barong Court, Reno, Nevada
("Incident"). Pipeline Safety Engineers Ken Saarem, Mike Evans, and Daniel Adesina responded to
the Incident and performed an on-site investigation. The on-site investigation determined that the
homeowner was backing out his RV from the right side of the house (facing the house from the street)
when the stairs on the RV clipped the anodeless service riser just below the stopcock valve, causing an
uncontrolled release of gas that could not be shutoff at the riser.

The homeowner called 911 after the gas release occurred; NV Energy was also notified. An NV
Energy dispatcher directed both a gas serviceman and a gas inspector to the site. The NV Energy
serviceman and his apprentice were first on scene to the Incident and were unable to find the service
line curb valve and the gas needed to be shut down by shutting off the main pipeline valve feeding the
eleven homes on the Barong Court cul-de-sac. Prior to the NV Energy crew shutting off the gas feed,
two Reno Fire Department ("FD") fire fighters attempted to shut off power to the home by opening the
main circuit breaker on the main house electrical panel located approximately 6 feet away from the
damaged service riser. Based upon reports from the scene, a gas ignition occurred at the electrical
panel when the two Reno FD fire fighters opened the breaker, burning both fire fighters. A second
ignition appeared to take place in the attic of the home shortly after the first ignition at the electrical
panel. The Reno FD extinguished both ignitions and the two burned fire fighters were sent to the
hospital and released that same day.

On August 30, 2019, Staff sent 47 data requests to NV Energy regarding the Incident, via Staff special
investigation 55-1927, and Staff subsequently sent several follow-up data requests. Additionally, Staff
held a meeting with NV Energy on September 20, 2019, to review a draft of NV Energy's 30-day
Pipeline Hazardous Material Safety Administration ("PHMSA") Incident Report. NV Energy filed its
30-day PHMSA Incident Report on September 23, 2019.

Based upon Staff's investigation to-date, Staff has identified four (4) Probable Violations ("PVs") and
one (1) Issue of Concern ("IOC"). Staff sent a Notice of Probable Violation letter to NV Energy on
November 6, 2019.

Staff has not yet concluded its investigation of this incident and is currently in settlement negotiations
with NV Energy. However, Staff does agree with the apparent cause of the Incident as reported by
NV Energy in its 30-day PHMSA Distribution Incident Report.

'High Level Cause Codes: A - Corrosion failure; B - Natural Force Damage; C - Excavation Damage; D - Other
Outside Force Damage; E - Pipe, Weld or Joint Failure; F - Equipment Failure; G - Incorrect Operation; H - Other
=== Incident Cause; IP - Investigation Pending;
’Please include a summary or report of the state agency's investigation of each of the above incidents.
*Interstate agents should use the 191.3 Incident definition for listing incidents investigated on interstate facilities.
‘Significant: Investigated by or reported to the state agency, involving personal injury requiring hospitalization,

fatality, property damage exceeding $50,000 and other incidents otherwise considered significant which involved
jurisdictional facilities.

Attachment 4 Notes

DUNS: 878878743 Nevada
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Attachment 5 - Stats on Compliance Actions

STATE COMPLIANCE ACTIONS -- CALENDAR YEAR (CY) 2019

Probable Violation Categories Intrastate Interstate
Number carried over from all previous CY's 13 0
Number Found During CY 44 0
Number submitted for DOT action [60106 Agreement agent 0 0
only]
Number corrected during CY (including carry over from 37 0
previous year(s))
Number to be corrected at end of CY (including carry over) 20 0
Number of Compliance Actions Taken '

(see definition) 39
Civil Penalties

Number assessed during CY 4

Dollars assessed during CY $612,000.00

Number collected during CY 4

Dollars collected during CY $612,000.00

'Do not double count for a related series of actions.

Attachment 5 Notes

The $612,000 in civil penalties issued in 2019 is comprised of four (4) different proceedings and that civil
=== penalty amount is a Nevada PSP record. The following is a summary of the four (4) civil penalty cases
= assessed that comprises the $612,000 being reported:

E #1 - A civil penalty totaling $500,000 was assessed against NV Energy, OPID 18308, for the March 22, 2018,
=== 324 Eurcka Avenue Federal Reportable Incident that was outlined in the 2018 Progress Report. The $500,000
— il penalty was associated with NV Energy making temporary service connections via means that were not
—

— mmmm CONsistent with its procedures. One of the service connections ended up leaking which eventually led to the
— house explosion. On December 24, 2018, Staff and NV Energy reached a settlement agreement and filed a
=== Stipulation outlining the $500,000 civil penalty as well as an agreement to have NV Energy spend an

E additional $120,000 on public awareness activities. The Stipulation also outlined that NV Energy was

s required begin having its new construction and pipe replacement contractors become Operator Qualified.
—— === Finally, the Stipulation included a provision that precluded NV Energy from requesting cost recovery of the
s $353,000 incident cost from ratepayers. On February 15, 2019, the PUCN accepted the Stipulation and civil
mmm penalty in Docket No. 18-12022. The civil penalty payment amount of $500,000 was paid by NV Energy on
=== March 27, 2019.

===#2 - A civil penalty totaling $10,000 was assessed against Southwest Gas, OPID 18536, for the January 15,

DUNS: 878878743 Nevada
2019 Gas Base Grant Progress Report PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION NEVADA, Page: 17



2018, Hawk Springs and Mesa Park Federal Reportable Incident that was outlined in the 2018 Progress
Report. The $10,000 civil penalty was associated with a significant leak that occurred on Southwest Gas'
distribution system, with the leak being caused by a 4-inch polyethylene butt fusion that was not performed
consistent with Southwest Gas' procedures and the plastic pipe joining regulations contained in 49 CFR 192.
On March 20, 2019, Staff and Southwest Gas reached a settlement agreement and filed a Stipulation outlining
the $10,000 civil penalty. The Stipulation also outlined that Southwest Gas was required to spend an
additional $10,000 to begin an electronic Operator Qualification Card tracking program. The Stipulation also
included a provision that precluded Southwest Gas from requesting cost recovery of the $112,000 cost of the
incident from ratepayers. On May 7, 2019, the PUCN accepted the Stipulation and civil penalty in Docket
No. 19-03028. The civil penalty payment amount of $10,000 was paid by Southwest Gas on May 10, 2019.

#3 - A civil penalty totaling $8,000 was assessed against AmeriGas Corporation ("AmeriGas"), OPID 32013,
regarding the jurisdictional LPG systems it operates in Nevada. The civil penalty was associated with
AmeriGas' repeated failure to perform and document proper regulator maintenance inspections at multiple
jurisdictional LPG systems. AmeriGas's failure to perform and document that inspections was a violation of
49 CFR 192.729. On May 14, 2019, Staff and AmeriGas reached a settlement agreement and filed a
Stipulation outlining the $8,000 civil penalty. On July 10, 2019, the PUCN accepted the Stipulation and civil
penalty in Docket No. 19-05020. The civil penalty payment was paid by AmeriGas on July 26, 2019.

#4 - An additional civil penalty totaling $94,000 was assessed against Southwest Gas, OPID 18536, for the
July 26,2016, Acacia Tree Drive and Anasazi Drive Federal Reportable Incident that occurred in Las Vegas,
Nevada. During a review of the costs associated with Southwest Gas' 2018 general rate case filing (Docket
No. 18-05031), PSP Staff found that the cost of the replacement backhoe that was destroyed in the July 26,
2016, Incident had been included in Southwest Gas' cost recovery request. As part of the civil penalty
stipulation that was previously reached for the Incident (Docket No. 17-08020), Southwest Gas had agreed, as
a result of violations of 49 CFR 192, and in lieu of a being assessed a larger civil penalty amount, to not
request cost recovery of the replacement backhoe. Because of Southwest Gas' violation of a previously
issued enforcement order, the Commission issued an additional $94,000 civil penalty, via Docket No.
18-11033, against Southwest Gas. The $94,000 additional civil penalty amount was paid by Southwest Gas
on September 18,2019

Nevada's PSP and the PUCN also assessed $136,000 (32 different cases) in civil penalties to excavators/
operators for violations of Nevada's One-Call Law (NRS 455). Because these violations were not associated
with 49 CFR 192, they have not been included in the civil penalty figures above. However, Nevada's PSP
believes it is important to inform PHMSA of these penalties given that PHMSA is evaluating States as to
whether they have an effective One-Call Law/Enforcement.

DUNS: 878878743

2019 Gas Base Grant Progress Report
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Attachment 6 - List of Records Kept

GAS STATE RECORD MAINTENANCE AND REPORTING DURING CY 2019

Records Maintained by the State Agency

Records of inspections, probable violations, follow-up actions and enforcement activities.

Records of expenditures for the Gas Pipeline Safety Program.
Letters, directives, correspondence, certification, authorizations, etc.
Requested Interpretation Requests and Waiver Request Information.
Some NTSB reports and various safety releases.

Guidelines for States participating in the Gas Pipeline Safety Program.

Pipeline Safety Regulations (49 CFR Parts 191, 192, 193 and 199) including amendments.

Information related to T&Q training.

Records and correspondence from PHMSA program evaluations.
Some NAPSR correspondence.

Incident Reports and Investigation Documentation.

Probable Violation Log.

One-Call Enforcement Log.

Pipeline Safety Manual / Procedures

Records for Pipeline Safety personnel Activity Tracking

Reports Required from Operators

Incident reports.

Annual reports.

Annual Results of Drug and Alcohol testing for applicable operators.
Operations Manuals.

LDC quarterly/yearly damage cause data.

Notification emails on excavation damages from larger operators.

Some misc. audit related documents, such as leak trend analyses, ILI Reports, ECDA Reports, etc.

Attachment 6 Notes

DUNS: 878878743
2019 Gas Base Grant Progress Report

Nevada
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION NEVADA, Page: 19



07 23ed 'VAVAEN NOISSININOD SHILITILA J178Nd
epRASN

uoday ssa1fold weir) aseq sen 6107

EVL8L88LS -SNNA

—
=
=
Al 1 _ €€ A1) uosie) JURISISS Y dANRISTUTWPY m
unep 1puk) |
j10ddng dAneSIUIWPY pUE [LILIJ])) | mu—
11 a | el SunsouIsuy Jogeue)y | —
aamgeA [ned m
1 4! _ 86 Ioau13uq suijadid sen m
BUISIPY I[PV | =
111 21 | 86 1ouiduyg auippdid sen m
SUBAY NI | ==
11 4! _ S6 1o0uIduyg auiadi sen) |
UoSIdAY A ——
I 14! _ S6 Joauidug auljadid sen
1 ETINRIETITIE) ¢
11 4! _ 14 Jooui3ug surjadid sen Joruag
[enased [N
11 Cl _ S9 19u13ug aurjaedld sen
Srea) ‘s1080y
103)e81)s9AU]/1033dsu]
11 1 | et SueuIuy Jogeuriy
[ned ‘Qiamgep
11 cl _\ 6y 1oouidug surjadid sen Iotues
[I9N ‘[endsed
J0s1a13dng
.EW.EES\M ]
‘en %l P LPWEN

610C AD ONIINA NVHYODO0Ud ALIAVS

sutures], QL pue Suyje)s - L Judwyoeny

ANI'TAdId SVO HHL NI AHATOANI A'TLOAIIA SHHAO'TdINA ALV.LS



12 :3%8d ‘VAVAIN NOISSINNOD SHILITILN O178Nd
BpEAIN

0€9 1)

€e0 I

0

61°¢ L

8L°0 [4

SIES L-UOSIdd  JJeIS JO ON

voday ssaifold Jueln) aseq sen 60

€VL8L88L8 -SNNA

[e10L

SANRISIUTWPY/[BILIA]D
[eo1uyd3 ] /uonuaAald afeweq
$101e31159AU]/$10303dsu]
Josiazadng

3AAT sakofdw

A1ewiwuing



T¢ 9%ed 'YAVAIN NOISSIAIWOD SAILITILN D1TdNd

epeAIN

uoday ssa1fo1d Jueln) aseq seD) 6[0T
€vL8L88L8 ‘SNNA

‘uonedLIIag/3ututes; gD VN 03 sieauiduyg A1ayes auijadid INO JO QU0 puds 01 A|qe dJom M ‘919[dw0d Ik SISSB[D JSOU ISNBIIY

“BPRASN UWISYINOS pue WIBYLON Y10q Ul pajedo] s1030adsul sapnjoul jey} pue ‘sse[d asne)
100y 9yl dARY A[IUSLIND s10303dsut (9) XIS S,epeAaN JO (§) 9A1 “JINIQ Pue Juelsissy uonoadsu] ‘asne)) 100y 3uldq 3soyl 07O 10 SISW{[0Iud
panpayds (¢) 9a1ys AJuo sey JSd BPeAdN 'SISSe[d JIA] QY3 [[B PUE SISSB[D 2102 J1Y) palo[dwod dARY $10103dsu] JSd ePeAdN 943 JO [V

"a3uel 9505 03 %0 Y} Ul 3oeq St dw ST IA Pue 6](Z Ul uleSe pue 810 ‘L10T Ul
pazijewsou sty |, “o3uel jusdiad (9 ul sem 9z ul dwi snnej [ned AYym sijey], ‘pIweu 3q p[nod 1sduiduy duljadid sen I01usg mau e [run
(pouad yiuow 4 e J0y) 103euey wesdoid K1ojes aurjadig Aresodwd) se ur-deys o) paiinbar sem aan3ey [ned ‘193euepy Jussuiduy ‘90T Ul

‘JueID) 9segq Syl Ul papn|oul Jou e $3s0d asoy) pue A[ojeredas
pasyoen ale GGy SUN Surdioyus pue Sunoadsur juads awm oy, Juadiad (O] uey) ss3] I W) §,10303dsu] IS0yl JO yoes Aym si ey pue
(,SST SUN,) meT 31 IN0 & 210Jog [[€D S;BPLA3N JO JUSWIDIOJUD pue suondadsul [[eD-auQ wioyiad os[e aA0qe pajsi| s1030adsu] Jay10 Sy L

‘sSunsaw [euoIFal YSJVN Julpuspe pue aapiwwooqns jyels Ajajes surjedid DYVN 2!
uo Sureq Fuipnout ‘aanyeu ur K1osiazadns st spuads axnSej “IA dwi JOY10 Y], ‘sanianoe Aojes suijadid uo spuads ay swn ay3 Jo usdad
G1 01 sajenba yorym “xeak 1ad sAep uonoadsur (¢ 03 0z AysSnos wroyiad [[im axnSej [ned Jey) PIIBNSa S Yons sy ‘suondddsur OO pue
UONONIISUOD ‘pIepuE)s pea| 0} payyifenb A[[ny s1 pue ‘sse[d> OO Y3 SuIpn[oul ‘sasse[o )29 ], 2109 [[e sey ‘aungely [ned ‘1o8eurjy Sulssurduyg

“Jjosu a1els ay) Aq Joy pred

10 JUBID) [[B)) SUQ S,BPRAdN Isutede pagieyo s1 pedjsul inq Jueln) aseq oY) JsuieSe pajedo][e Jou SI IIm SINSSI JUSWIIIOJUS pue suondadsut
[[BD-3UQ 181§ U0 Juads 04/ "7 Sururewal ay) yiim suonisod om) ay) usamiaq Njds sem swn siy Jo %¢€'L6 "10393dsu] Juadiad ()¢ pue Jostazadng
1ua213d (o5 se dn uayouq st uonisod s,[19N Aym st jey) uonisod Josiazadns-jey/io)oadsul-jey e st uonisod 1a3uiduy autjadid sen I01USS YL

‘13A0uIn} daKojdwa ou pey JSd epeAaN 2Y) JeYy) MOl B Ul Jedk
YLINOJ Sy} SeM SIY [ "SSJIY MU OU Pue JaAouIN} 29K0[dwd ou YuMm ‘61 (g Ul pajjels A[[nJ pue dqels sem s10303dsul Sd BpeAdN JO Jaquinu dyJ,

S3ON L JUoWPENY



£2 :98ed 'VAVAEN NOISSTAWOD SHLLITLLN D11dnd

BPRASN uoday ssa1501{ JuRID) 3seq Sen) 6107
€VL8L88L8 -SNNA

210N

padopy  500Z/01 SYDH ul saul] uoissiwisues} JoJ juswaeuew Ayudaut aurppdly  $002/92/S S6

Q10N

padopy  9002/90 SUl"] UOISSIWSURL], B JO UORIULIp 3y} 0) UOREIYIPON $00T/9/8 ¥6

RN

o1do SUOIJEPUIW WOII
paidopy 1002/01 ASd VN wolj sprepuels Ajojes autjadid sed 03 soSueyos snorea £002/51/01 t6
910N
SIojem djels ojul K[39311p sso1o jey) sautjadid

paidopy  #00T/01 [eInjeU J[9YS [BIUSUNUOI JIINO paje1ddo-190npoi] 10J saINpadold £002/v/6 c6

KN

paidopy  $00Z/01 saul| uoissiwsuelr) sed 10} sease ddunbasuod Y3y jo uouyad  $00L/EUY 16

RILN¢

padopy  $002/01 [200z Butpnjout pue 03 Joud sjuswpudwe djqearidde [y] 00z 21d 06-10

Sjuswipuswry 76 jied [4
“1eak K190 Junowre Koyine Aijeuad [1A10 ay) Isnipe 03 onews[qoid aq pinod i se A[9so[o atow s3enuel Jusunsnlpe uoneyul ayy Apnis
03 Spaau NDNd YL unowe Ayjeudd [1a10 paisnipe uoneyul [e1opd,] mau ay) jdope o3 uone|sids| mau Suinsind Auasind 1ou st NONd YL

210N
“uolj|iw 7§ Jo wnwixew e pue judprout 13d 000‘00g$ Jo piepuels Aeuad [1A10 [BI9PS,] mau 3y} o} Junowe Kyuioyine Kyjeusd [1a10 A19)es
aurjadid s,epeAaN pasealioul Yoiym ‘uolssas aANe[sIZaT epeAdN S10Z ayi Suunp passed 9g [[1g sjeusg Suidd ur [nyssadons sem NONd UL
*S3)0U Ul Junowre

(000°000°2$/000°002$) Pa1dopy  STOZ/SO 1EMdE d3edPU] “(000°000°T$/000°001S$) ISL3] 3¢ Jo sonjeusd wnwruiw ydope jsnu I
18IS (897°ZET°T$/89T'CTTS) LOJ St dwes Ajfenue)sqng sd1jeudd WNWIXE]

e e .
snjejSuondopy wondopy joeduy AT ON

6107 'I¢ JHAINIODAA A0 SV SINFINTAINOTA 'TVIAdAd HLIM ADNVITJINOD ALVIS

SUoONEN3INY [BIIPd] YNM dduerdwo) - § JudwydL)y



2 388d ‘'VAVAIN NOISSINIWOD SAILITILA D174Nd
EpeASN

uoday ssaiFoid Juels) aseq sen) 6107

€vL8L88L8 ‘SNNA

N =
sioye1adQ uonnqguusiq —_—
paidopy 0102/01 sen) uIeld)) 03 suone[n3ay ssaualemy diqnd Jo b_:n_momaaf Looz/el/el 501 m
o =
paidopy  010Z/01 SUOTIEdJLIE]D PUB SUONEIYIPON Weidold yudwddeuey A2 L00T/ET/S 701 w
_oHOZ. w
pardopy  0102/01 Ul UOISOLIO)) [RUISIU] 90NPIY 0} m_uEvcmwmcﬂw%wmhw%wMwﬁwﬂm“w_mwm LOOT/ECT/Y 55002 dd Tl W
210N M
paidopy  010Z/01 UOI10311100) pue 30UaIJay Aq parerodioou] ajepdn) L00Z/1/2 eeol m
910N m
paidopy  010T/01 spiepuels snoteA 90ua19Jay Aq ajerodioou]  900Z/01/L €01 m
210N
padopy  010T/01 aur] SuueyieD e Jo uonuydd  900T/v1/v 201
Q10N
paidopy  9002/90 PIEPUE)S JUSWISISSE 191 € SE prepuels FOVN Jo uondopy  500z/Sz/11 101
910N
padopy  9002/90 wei301d uonedyrjeng) Jojesdd( o3 sagueyd Llomels Visd  S00T/SI1/L 001
310N
paydopy  9002/90 ugredwed ssaudseme A[qnd 7911 I IV S00T/0T/9 66
910N
anao_u< S00¢/01 mﬂo_uooamcm Jajemliapun o:uotva Jo dduewIojiod 007/6/6 6
Q10N
saurjadid uorssiwsuery
paidopy  £002/01 P1I1J011d1 PUB MAU UO SIIIAP uondadsul _mE.BE ,«.o mmwmmmm v00T/87/L L6
210N
padopy  500Z/01 suonjeys Supjengal pue Juniwi] Anssald  y00T/¥1/6 96




§T #%ed "'VAVAIN NOISSINWOD SHLLITILN O11dnd
epEAIN

uoday ssa1501( Juein) aseg sen) 6107

€YL8L88LY -SNNA

910N
paydopy  [10Z/40 siuawalinbay Funioday ainjie Sumig [EJURYRIN  [10T/4/F  b6¥S WA 9L - 911
310N
padopy  010Z/11 siuawaainbay Sunoday sen payenbr pue suijadig o1 sayepdn  0107/97/11 8L8TL YA SL-S11
(10N
SHPH SNOJUR[[IISIA
paidopy  0102/01 pue spiepuel§ [BIIUYD |, 0} S99UI)oY A101e[n3aY Jo sajepdn) o1poLidd 010T/11/8 €658y A SL- vl
910N
padopy  0102/01 sautjadid uonnqusi(y sen Joj weigold udwageue|N AUSW]  600T/7/C1  906€9 U vL-€11
910N
paidopy  010Z/01 $10}9€{ UBWINH/JUSWAFEUBIA WOOY [01U0D)  6007/€/Z1  01€€9 A LTI 1
;910N
paidopy  010Z/01 suone[n3ay A1oyes auljadid 03 syudwipudwY [BHONPH  6007/0€/11  €0ST9 ¥d vL-111
Q10N
paidopy  0102/01 AInN)ISU] wnadjondd :moto:;ﬁBmvaho@_opmwwomM%W%MMM%%UMW 600T/v1/y  660L1 ¥d ¥L-011
910N
Sjuswipuswy/
padopy  0102/01 [EO1UY3 . PUE © sa1epd(] SSAIPPY ‘$21npasoid oanensiuiupy  000T/91/L 6887 Wd bL-601
910N
padopy  0102/01 (S006L ¥4 £L) saanssald usisaq 11-Vd  800T/4T/T1  T006L YA £L-801
910N
PAOPY  0L0TI01 055014 Sunsindo osmol Smeetont o Setsommnn 03 sommonmny, SO0TILUOL  LPIZ9 ¥l £L-L0!
910N
padopy  010Z/01 (29591 A 8007/8T/€  T9S91 WA €£L-901

€/) sjuswpuawy [es1uydd] pue sajepdn) ‘saInpadold SANRHSIUIWDPY




97 :9%ed ‘VAVAIN NOISSINWOD SALLITILN O1'71dNd
BpEAIN

poday sse1Soid Juels) aseq sen 6107
€vL8L88L8 ‘SNNA

(210N
paxdopy  0102/01 spiepuels snoLIeA 20ud1aJy Aq ajerodiodu)  900Z/01/L 61
210N
paydopy  0102/01 uo13o3s Aq spaepuels DN parepdn ¥00T/6/¥ 81
910N
paydopy  010Z/01 [200z Sutpnjour pue o} soud sjuswpuswe ajqedrjdde |[v] 00T 21d L1-10
(9N'T 1940 uondIpsLnf sey aje)s d1dym Auo sfqedijdde) syuswpudwy ¢6J 3ed €
6102 10} JUsWpUIWE MU (910N

1do sen 13Y10 )
padopy 6102/2¢/1 pue [eInjeN Jo uoneyodsuel ] ayy ur swoysAs Suidig ouseld Jo asn) 6107/TT/1  ¥698S dd €8 - Tl
910N

saguey) A19jes autjadid 1910 pue ‘UONBIIJION

paidopy L10T/¢ JUSPIOU] PUE JUSPIdY ‘A12A009Y 1500 “UOHEILI[EN]) J0e1ad( L10T/vT/e  TL6L ¥d T8 - Tl
910N

So0uapIsaY AJiwe,-9[3ulS uey |, 12y1Q suonestjddy 01 swaisAs )
paydopy L10T/Y UONNQUISI(] SED) Ul SIA[EA MO]] SSO9XE JO as() oy Suipuedxg L10T/v1/v 6860L ¥d 18 - 1Tl
910N

(@gav1ad

padopy  S107/01 0C'Z61 Hed) suonenday A1ojes suradid 0} SIBUBYD) SNOSUE][IISI S10T/1/01  6LLT1 ¥4 08 - 0C1
210N

sido SIpPY SNOAUR[[IISIIA )
paidopy $102/£0 pue SpIepuR)S [ED1UYDI |, 0] S30UIRJY A10jen3ay Jo sajepdn) olponiad S102/9/¢ 891 ¥4 08~ 611
210N

o1do (so1e1g 031 9qeordde )
paidopy £102/60 10N SUO1}03110)) [BIIUYIS | pue ‘sdjepd) ‘SaINPad0I] dANRISIUIWIPY £102/87/6 L6885 ¥ 8L~ 811
910N
paidopy  1107/80 $1030€,{ UBWINH/JUdWaZRUBIA WOOY [oNU0)  1107/S1/8  0€1SE Yd 9L-L11




LT 33ed "VAVAIN NOISSIAWOD SAILITILN O1'TdNd
epEASN

upoday ssaiSold Jueir) aseq sen 610

EVL8LBYLY -SNNA

P
padopy  $00Z/01 3untodal 10} sSUppe MON ¥00T/¥1/L (44 Iml
10N m
padopy  £00Z/01 SIW Joj w0y as) d[3ul§ Joj suononusul  €007/1€/C1 I
RN
paidopy  #00Z/01 lojensiulwpy jo uoniuygad  £007/21/€ 0T w
Q10N m
padopy  $00Z/01 [200z Sutpnout pue 03 Joud syuswpudwe d[qedsiidde [[yv] 700z 21d 61-10 m
spuWpuIWY 661 34td s =
910N m
padopy  000Z/b0 Sunso 1 Snaq - 661 1Hed yoo
210N
paidopy  $102/£0 pue Spiepue}S [BIIUYID ], 0] SAUIRJY Aloje[n3ay wm_ummoawwww_wﬁwmw S102/9/¢ 891 44 08 - 5T
910N
padopy  €102/60 SUOND31I0)) [BdIUYD3], pUe ‘sajepd() ‘SaINPadoild SANRNSIUIWPY  €107/87/6 L6885 ¥A 8L - ¥CT
Q10N
padopy  0107/11 sjuowiaainbay Suinoday sen payanbi pue aurjadig o1 sayepdn)  0107/92/11  8L8TL Wd SL- €T
210N
paidopy  0102/01 pue spJepuel§ [ed1Uyd3], 0} SAIUAIJY A103B[NTY wmwwh“mwﬁﬁ“mm 010%/11/8 €658y dd SL-zC
Q10N
padopy  0102/01 [eo1UY0a . puE sa1epdp) SSRIPPY © SAINPaOIq 3 mem_ﬁwﬁ« 6002/91/1 688C Yd vL-1T
910N
padopy  0102/01 (29591 Ad 8007/8T/€  T9S91 ¥d £L-0C

£1) SIUSWPUIW Y [BIIUYI [ pue sajepd() ‘sainpadold dAlEHSIUIWpPY




87 3%ed 'VAVAIN NOISSINWOD SHILITILN JI1dNd
EpEAIN

poday ssaiSold ueir) aseq sen 6107
£vL8L88L8 ‘SNNA

[J10N
paidopy  £861/L0 uonesijiou 0} asuodsai Jojerodo K10iepuey ]
210N

paydopy  L861/L0 uonedionied Jojerddo surjedid ajeisenur Alojepuey )
910N

paidopy  £861/L0 921J [[0} 3T 131UID 0} S[[BI JSYISYM UOHBUIULIIIP 31e)S P
910N

paidopy  £L861/L0 19U [[B9-2UO JO UOIIEOIJIIOU JOJBABIXY AIOJEPUBIA 2
(910N

padopy  L861/L0 wIsAS [[Bo-u0 Jo uonerado 10j uonedlyend) q
(210N

paidopy  £861/L0 sanoey aurjadid Suiaey seare Jo a8eI9A09 K10jRpUBIA ‘B
weasoaJ uonudIAdLJ dsemie( [[€D-2UQ d1eIS 861 1ed Jo uondopy el 9

910N

saguey) K195es aurjadid J8Y)Q pue ‘UonEdJIION
padopy  L10T/€ JUSPIOU] PUB JUIPIIIY ‘AIDA003Y 150D ‘uonedijien) JojeradQ L10T/ve/e cLeL¥d 8- Le
N
1do SIIPH SNOJUE[[IISIA )

paidopy  $102/t0 pue splepue}s [BdIUYD3 ], 01 SO0UIJOY A10)en3aY Jo sojepdn) d1poliad s102/9/¢ 891 44 08 - 92
(210N

paydopy  €102/60 SUOIDALI0D) [edIUYI], pue ‘sajepd() ‘saInpadoid JANENSIUIWPY  €107/8T/6  L688S¥UA 8L - ST
SI0N

(29591 ¥4

paidopy  0102/01 €/) SJUSWPUAWY [BITUYD ], pue sajepd() ‘saInpadold dANRHSIUIWPY 8002/87/¢ 09591 dd £Lve
910N

paydopy  5002/01 d3ueyd dSwWeu uoneNsIUIWpY S00T/8/¢ €C




67 :33¢d 'VAVAIN NOISSINWOD SAILITILN OI74Nd
epRASN

uoday ssa1Soid wein) aseq sen 607
¢v/8L88L8 ‘SNNA

661 PUB €61 ‘T61 ‘161 YD 6 Ul paureluod suonenday K1a5es autfadig [e1apad 1saie] ays sidope K[feonewoine (094 40L OVN) suonen3ar sNONd YL

SIJON § JWWYRENY

A[feuualg :uoISSaS aANe[SIZaT [eIaUaD) JO Aduanbaig
(3ye1s aurjadid sAneusdye Jo dax pea]) awn [nJ papusny :SunasA 1euoISY YSAVN 6107 18 20uBpua)ly 2181S
uonjeue|dxa ue apraoad ases|q ‘oN st smyeys uondopy J1,

'8 [[1g 21euag Jo ued se gz ul paseaiour a1am syunowe Ajjeuad [1A1) (910N
paadopy  1661/01 10a se awes A[fenueisqns Jaijas aanounfuysanjeuad [1A1D) |
210N

paidopy  £861/L0 21]qnd/s1018ABIXD JO UOIIEIIJII0U AIOJepUBIA ‘3




Attachment 10 - Performance and Damage Prevention Questions

CALENDAR YEAR (CY) 2019

Planned Performance: What are your Planned Annual and Long-term goals for your Pipeline Safety Program?

1. With the majority of Master Meter Mobile Home Parks replaced by the LDC and Nevada being one of the fastest growing states in
the Nation; the Nevada Pipeline Safety Program (PSP) will continue to focus on construction inspections.

2. The largest LDC in Nevada, Southwest Gas Corporation is currently in the process of expanding their service territories into the
City of Mesquite, Nevada and Spring Creek, Nevada. The Nevada PSP plans to spend time inspecting this new construction and
expansion work.

3. There are also various initiatives to replace early vintage plastic and steel pipelines in Nevada's system and the Nevada PSP will
continue to focus on these types of construction inspections.

4. Nevada's second largest operator, NV Energy, is scheduled to perform an ILI on its largest transmission pipeline in 2020 and
Nevada PSP plans to have multiple people inspecting this work.

5. Staff development is a key element to the Nevada PSP. As such, various inspectors will have the opportunity to lead LDC, LPG
and transmission company audits. In addition, the Nevada PSP will encourage team members that have completed their Federal
Training (TQ in Oklahoma) to continue their education in alternative venues such as NACE training or various committees.

6. The rapid growth in Nevada brings upon challenges of new excavation contractors, who have new and less experience employees
with existing contractors as well as rush projects. As such, the Nevada PSP will strive to keep pipeline damages low. Some activities
to accomplish this are random one-call inspections, excavator training, penalties and fines, and post-damage on-scene inspections.

7. Nevada PSP plans to continue to perform focused quarterly audits of its two largest LDC operators, Southwest Gas and NV Energy.
These focused audits have led to Nevada PSP having a much deeper understanding of the LDC's operations and has allowed for the
identification of more issues and violations.

8. With new line locating contractors for both LDC's in Northern and Southern Nevada, Nevada PSP plans to watch closely ensuring
that they are adequately locating gas pipeline, including field inspections and a damage prevention audit.

9. There has been inconsistencies and discrepancies as to what our operators classify as residential vs business districts for leak
surveys. The rapidly growing business districts in Nevada only add to the conflict and Pipeline Safety staff fells that there are or are
potential business districts that are not being classified properly and missing the annual leak survey. To enhance safety, eliminate
confusion, and ensure all consistency with classifying all business districts; Pipeline Safety Staff is proposing regulations that all
pipeline (transmission, distribution, mains and services) will be leak surveyed annually.

Past Performance: What did the Pipeline Safety Program accomplish during the subject year (to this document) to contribute
toward the program's annual and long-term goals?
1. The final master meter mobile home park was replaced by the LDC in late 2018. This leaves only one master meter operator in
Nevada (a small hotel in the Lake Tahoe area). This reduction in master meter operators has allowed more resources to be dedicated
to inspect larger, higher risk operators.

2. Nevada PSP performed inspections of its two largest operators, NV Energy and Southwest Gas, ILI TRIMP work. These
inspections allowed Nevada PSP inspectors to utilize the TRIMP and ILI training they received from the T&Q classes. Since Nevada
is a smaller State and does not have ILI work occurring every year, it is very important for Nevada PSP to inspect this work when it is
occurring.

3. Even with the accelerated growth in Nevada and record excavation work, the PUCN was still successful in driving down the State's
Pipeline Damage Rate (to 2.3 damages per 1000 tickets) through inspections, education/training and enforcement. In 2019 Nevada
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had its lowest ever natural gas damage rate and issued its highest amount of one-call civil penalties.
4. The Nevada PSP continued to have a high ranking with the Pipeline Safety Trust.

5. The Nevada PSP experienced its fourth consecutive year of no employee turnover, this lack of turnover has resulted in the Nevada
PSP having highly trained inspectors in the field performing inspections.

1. Has the state or agency reviewed the Damage Prevention Assistance Program (DPAP) document in the last twelve months?

Yes

2. Has the state or agency developed or is in the process of developing a plan to address the nine elements contained in the PIPES
Act of 2006 for an effective State Damage Prevention Program?

Yes

If yes to question 2, where does the state or agency stand on implementation of the nine elements contained in the PIPES Act of
2006? Please provide a description of how the state or agency has or will meet each element. If not, please provide a brief passage
explaining the reasons why the state or agency has not.

All 9 Elements have been implemented by Nevada. The majority of the Elements have been implemented though the Nevada
Regional Common Ground Alliance ("NRCGA"). Implementation of Elements 6 and 7 (Enforcement) is primarily a function of the
Public Utilities Commission of Nevada ("PUCN"), its pipeline safety program ("PSP") and its Staff legal department.

Element 1 Enhanced Communications between operators and excavators.

Nevada's One-Call Center, USA North ("USAN"), is a member of the NRCGA and participates in the monthly NRCGA meetings.
These meetings and USAN's participation gives all stakeholders (operators and excavators) the opportunity to discuss the operations
of the One-Call Center. The PUCN is working on legislation to use Positive Response, where each ticket has a current status that can
be reviewed by the excavators, operators, locators and the PUCN.

Element 2 Fostering Support and partnership of all stakeholders.

This has been accomplished through the participation of operators, excavators, USAN, and the PUCN pipeline safety program Staff
during the monthly NRCGA meetings. At least one member of the PUCN's pipeline safety group typically attends the monthly
NRCGA meetings which are video linked to both Reno and Las Vegas.

Element 3 Operator use of performance measures for locators.

The two local distribution companies ("LDCs") Southwest Gas and NV Energy have Quality Assurance/Quality Control ("QA/QC")
measures for locators and use the QA/QC measures to drive improvements. Additionally, both operators track the cause of each
damage, including miss-marks and report that data on an annual basis to the CGA DIRT database. These damage numbers are
reviewed at least quarterly/yearly, in order to track locating company performance.

Element 4 Stakeholder partnership in employee training.

Excavator training has been developed and implemented through the NRCGA with the assistance of the PUCN pipeline safety group
and LDC operators. Training sessions are held on a regular basis, and on-site training sessions are available and are often put on at
excavating company offices in order to allow for more training and easier access.

Element 5 Partnership in Public Education.

The NRCGA has increased its membership dues in order to raise additional funds for a Public Education Program. The PUCN is a
paying member of the NRCGA. The NRCGA has a Public Outreach Sub-Committee, which the PUCN Staff also participates in. 811
Banners have been purchased and distributed to equipment rental yards and Home Shows are attended where 811 Call-Before-You-
Dig information is handed out. Kinder Morgan has also painted a very large 811 logo on one of its white holding tanks in Reno that is
visible from Interstate-80. The PUCN Staff, via its Public Outreach Director, regularly attends Home/Trade Shows both in Northern
and Southern Nevada and to distribute literature regarding safe digging practices and the use of 811. The goal of these efforts is to
increase public awareness and education of the 811 program. Additionally, the NRCGA placed numerous educational booths events
local events (such as contractor and builder golf tournaments) in order to promote safe digging practices and the use of 811.

Element 6 Enforcement agencies role to help resolve issues.

The PUCN has authority to enforce Nevada's One-Call Law (NRS 455). Verbal warnings are given in the field for minor violations
that are discovered. If the verbal warnings are not effective and repeat violations are observed, a formal written Warning Letter is sent
from the PUCN Staff Legal Counsel to the violating operator/excavator. If further violations are found after a Warning Letter has been
issued or if egregious acts are discovered, the PUCN Staff can file a Formal Complaint Petition with the PUCN requesting civil
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penalties be assessed against those operators/excavators who continually violate and/or egregiously violate NRS 455.

Element 7 Fair and consistent enforcement of the law.

Nevada's One-Call Statute, NRS 455 was revised during the 2007 legislative session to include Enforcement by the PUCN Staff. Since
that time the PUCN Staff, with the help of its Staff Counsel Division, has developed procedures for enforcing NRS 455.

Additionally, in 2015 the civil penalty amounts outlined in NRS 455 were increased from $1000 per day per violation to $2,500 per
day per violation. Also, there is now a provision in the law that allows the civil penalty amount to be tripled if the violation involves
high consequence facilities, such as pipelines operating above 90 PSI. In 2019, the PUCN assessed $149,750 in One-Call civil
penalties. This is the highest amount ever issued for a calendar year by the PUCN, which also correlates with the lowest amount in
damages per 1000 tickets. The PUCN also issued 14 written warning letters and issued approximately 235 verbal field warnings. Civil
penalties have been assessed to both contractor (excavators) and facility operators ensuring that they are both accountable for their
role in damage prevention.

Element 8 Use of Technology to improve the locating process.

USA North is working with the NRCGA on an app for ticket management for contractors to provide information whether a request is
valid, expired or in process. This will especially be helpful for contractors managing multiple dig tickets. There is also a drive to
promote on-line ticket processing. On-line ticket usage have increased from 35% in 2016 to 79% in 2019; resulting in a faster "speed
of answer" average. In 2016 the average time to answer a call was 5:27, and in 2019 this time improved to 1:05. The PUCN also has
access to the one-call ticketing system allowing us to review several ticket categories, such as "Damage Tickets" and "No Response"
tickets.

Element 9 Data analysis to continually improve program effectiveness.

The primary measure of program effectiveness is the number of dig-ins by year and the number of damages per 1000 tickets. Nevada
has been tracking this data since 2000. In 2004, Nevada experienced its highest number of dig-ins at 1,522, the number of dig-ins for
2019 was 341. Additionally, the number of damages per 1000 ticket number also dropped dramatically in 2019 to 2.26. This is the
lowest number since tracking began in 2000, which had a total of 14.24 damages per 1000 tickets.

Attachment 10 Notes
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